
 

 

 

 

RC130715agn  Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 

 

FLORIDA 
 

 

MEMORANDUM TO: 

 

The Honorable Mayor and 

Members of the City Council 

City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

 

Council Members: 

 

The following Agenda of Business has been prepared for consideration and action at the Regular 

Meeting of the City Council on Monday, July 15, 2013, at 7:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers, 11 

North Third Street, Jacksonville Beach, Florida. 

 

Opening Ceremonies: Invocation 

 Salute to the Flag 

 

Roll Call 

 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
    

 City Council Workshop held June 11, 2013 

 Regular City Council Meeting held June 17, 2013 

 

2. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 

3. COURTESY OF THE FLOOR TO VISITORS: 

 

4. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL: 
 

(a) Resolutions of Esteem – Raymond Fisher and Terry Simmons 

 

5. CITY CLERK:   
 

(a) Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair of the Jacksonville Beach Community 

Redevelopment Agency 

 

(b) Appointment of One Member to the Board of Adjustment 

 

6. CITY MANAGER: 

 

(a) Monthly Financial Reports – Month of June 2013 



Memorandum, Mayor and City Council  

City Council Agenda for July 15, 2013 

 

 

 

RC 130715agn   Page 2 of 2  

(b) Approval for the Beaches Area Historical Society to Permanently Close North 5th Street 

Between Beach Boulevard and Pablo Avenue to Traffic and Incorporate the Closed 

Property into the Pablo Historical Park 

 

(c) Approve the Council Budget Workshop Schedule 

 

(d) Approve the Roof Replacement at the Arc Building (Located at 321 Penman Road) 

 

7. RESOLUTIONS: 

 

(a) RESOLUTION NO. 1917-2013 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 

BEACH REQUESTING THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE TO KEEP THE BEACHES 

BRANCH LIBRARY OPEN AS A COUNTY SERVICE TO THE BEACHES. 

 

8. ORDINANCES: 

 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 /s/George D. Forbes   
 CITY MANAGER 

 

GDF:cmm 

07/11/13 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at any 

meeting, such person may need a record of the proceedings and, for such purpose, such person may need to ensure 

that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 

appeal is to be based.  

 

The public is encouraged to speak on issues on this Agenda that concern them.  Anyone who wishes to speak should 

submit the request to the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  These forms are available at the entrance 

of the City Council Chambers for your convenience. 

 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with 

disabilities needing special accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk’s Office at 

(904) 247-6299, ext. 10, no later than 12:00 PM, Friday, July 12, 2013. 



Minutes of City Council Workshop 

Mobile Food Vending 

Tuesday, June 11, 2013 – 6:30 PM 

City Council Chambers 

WS 130611 min Page 1 of 3 

 

Mayor Charlie Latham called the workshop to order at 6:30 PM. 

 

The following City Council members were in attendance: 
 

Mayor Charlie Latham  Chris Hoffman     

Mayor Pro-Tem Tom Taylor  Phil Vogelsang 

Keith Doherty    Jeanell Wilson 

Steve Hartkemeyer 

 

Also present were City Manager George Forbes, Planning and Development Director Steve 

Lindorff, and City Clerk staff. 

 

Purpose of Workshop 

 

The purpose of the workshop is to discuss a proposed ordinance to allow mobile food vendors to 

operate on private property within the City. 

 

Discussion 

 

Mayor Latham stated this is an informal discussion about food trucks, addressing the pros and 

cons for the community.     

 

City Manager George Forbes stated that in order to allow food trucks in the City it will require 

the Land Development Code to be changed.  If this is the direction chosen, Mr. Forbes stated the 

next step would be to the Planning Commission for a Public Hearing, then to the City Council.  

 

Planning and Development Director Steve Lindorff stated that the City conducted an online 

workshop for people to review and discuss the draft ordinance for mobile food vendors/food 

trucks.  Mr. Lindorff provided the draft ordinance and a print-out of the PowerPoint for the 

Council (copy on file for the record).  Extra copies were also available for people in attendance.   

 

Mr. Lindorff’s presentation included the public involvement of the online workshop, zoning that 

would allow mobile food vendors, location requirements, signage, noise, hours of operation,  

waste management, and licenses and permits.  Following the initial round of comments, Mr. 

Lindorff stated that a number of changes were made to this draft ordinance in response to  

concerns expressed. 

 

Discussion ensued and the council members had many questions in regards to where the food 

trucks could set up, the number of food truck licenses allowed, the hours they could operate, the 

fees, disposal of grease and wastewater, trash, and who would monitor them.  

  



Minutes of City Council Workshop 

held on Tuesday June 11, 2013 – 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

WS 130611 min   Page 2 of 3 

Fire Chief Gary Frasier stated that his department would be doing spot checks.  Chief Frasier 

also stated his department has a checklist ensuring the vendors meet the fire code. 

 

Mayor Latham said there are issues that need to be addressed with mobile food vendors.  He has 

looked at other communities such as San Francisco and Austin, but since they are much larger 

areas there is less impact overall.  He believes this will affect the existing brick and mortar 

businesses.  The Mayor stated that he thinks that food trucks should have to move at night rather 

than staying in one place.  He doesn’t believe there will be a positive tax impact on the 

community.  Mayor Latham would like to consider a 90 day trial period.   

 

Public Comment 
 

The following people addressed the Council: 

 

Ed Malin, 1436 Beach Blvd, owner of Angie’s Subs, Jacksonville Beach 

Mike Zachary, 7835 Chase Meadows Drive, owner of The Boardwalk, Jacksonville Beach 

Tony Largara, 135 3rd Ave South, owner of Blue Water Island Grill, Jacksonville Beach 

Javan Franks, 1012 1st Ave South, community activist 

Jeremy Newsome, owner of Smoky J’s food truck 

Robert Tilka, 3584 Trident Court, owner of Shim Sham Room, Jacksonville Beach 

Chris Dickerson, owner of Corner Taco food truck, 

Nicole & James Slimack, owner of Kona Ice SE Jax 

Anthony Hasham, owner of Happy Grilled Cheese food truck 

Charles Perry, 1674 Upper 4
th

 Avenue South 

Jimmy Toro, Palm Valley  

 

Topics of discussion were as follows: 

 

 local restaurant owners concerned that food trucks may negatively impact their business  

 restaurants and food trucks should be held to same rules and regulations 

 hours of operation after 2:00 a.m. should apply to brick and mortar businesses 

 food truck business brings opportunity and healthy competition   

 concerns with parking food trucks overnight at locations 

 set-up/take-down of food trucks daily is labor intensive  

 waste and trash disposal issues 

 having a trial period and limit the number of food trucks allowed to operate 

 business locations to operate a food truck 

 concerns about charge per location, rather than a flat fee 

 

There was no one else who wished to address the Council, Public Comment closed. 

 

Mayor Latham expressed his appreciation for everyone’s input.  He stated that more research is 

necessary before making a decision to proceed. 



Minutes of City Council Workshop 

held on Tuesday June 11, 2013 – 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

WS 130611 min   Page 3 of 3 

Based on the information gathered at this workshop, the City Manager stated that he and the 

Planning and Development Director, Steve Lindorff, will work on the next draft ordinance to 

present to Council.  The issues of concern to the City Council were: 

 

 Food trucks must be moved off the property every night 

 Identification of where grease and trash will be disposed 

 A possible trial period of one year 

 A limit on the number of food truck licenses/permits. 

 

The City Manager briefly addressed the following items which will be on the upcoming June 17, 

2013 City Council agenda: 

 

1. Magnetic gate locks and key fobs for the dog park. 

 

2. Resolution to reorganize certain positions in the Human Resources department resulting 

from the transfer of pension administration from the City Clerk’s office to Human 

Resources.  This resolution will also include technical changes to eliminate redundant or 

obsolete information from the Position Classification and Pay Plan and adjustments due 

to the increase in the minimum wage. 

 

The workshop adjourned at 8:06 PM. 
 

Submitted by: Jessica Memmer 

  Secretary, City Clerk’s Office  

                                                             

 

   Approved: 

  

 

    

William C. Latham, Mayor 

   

  Date:   July 15 , 2013  

 



 

 

RC 130617min  Page 1 of 12 

Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting 

held Monday, June 17, 2013, at 7:00 P.M.  

in the Council Chambers, 11 North 3
rd

 Street, 

Jacksonville Beach, Florida.  
 

CALL TO ORDER: 

 

Mayor Charlie Latham called the meeting to order. 

 

OPENING CEREMONIES: 

 

Invocation was by Council Member Taylor; followed by the Salute to the Flag.   

 

ROLL CALL: 

 

Mayor: Charlie Latham 

 

Council Members: Keith Doherty Steve Hartkemeyer Christine Hoffman 

 Tom Taylor Phil Vogelsang Jeanell Wilson  

 

Also present was City Manager George Forbes, City Department Directors, and City Clerk Judy 

Bullock. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, and passed, to approve the following 

minutes, as presented: 

 

 Regular City Council Meeting held June 3, 2013 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Councilmember Keith Doherty 

 

 Mr. Doherty advised that he had received many e-mails regarding the closing of the Beaches 

Branch Library and stated that the council should do everything they can to prevent the closure. 

 

 He also said that he had attended a meeting of business owners and residents offering ideas on 

ways to improve the image of Jacksonville Beach, and make it more welcoming and family 

friendly.  The group had many ideas to make the City more welcoming, such as naming the 

downtown area with a catchy name, instead of the CBD [Central Business District].  He stated 

that suggestions for the name could be sent to him at his city e-mail address. 

 

Councilmember Tom Taylor 

 

 Mr. Taylor shared that he had attended a retirement reception for Fletcher Middle School 

Science Teacher Kathy Poe.  He also urged citizens to view the Solar System on display. 

 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, June 17, 2013 

 
 

 

RC 130617min  Page 2 of 12 

 

Councilmember Chris Hoffman 

 

 Ms. Hoffman advised that she had recently visited the BEAM vegetable garden and that it is 

doing very well.  She added that there would be a blessing of the garden later in the summer. 

 

 She explained that BEAM had received a grant to provide services to low income seniors, 

should they need immediate service. 

 

Mayor Latham 

 

 Mayor Latham advised that he, Mayor Borno and Mayor Pruette wrote a joint letter regarding 

the plans to close the Beaches Branch Library that will be signed by the three Mayors and sent 

to City of Jacksonville Mayor Brown.  Mayor Latham also read the letter into the record (copy 

on file). 

 

Councilmember Jeanell Wilson 

 

 Ms. Wilson supported the Mayor’s efforts concerning the Beaches Branch Library and 

recommended that the Council adopt a Resolution to keep the library open. 

 

COURTESY OF THE FLOOR TO VISITORS 

 

Speakers: 

 

 Christa Murphy, 519 North 6th Street, Jacksonville Beach 

Ms. Murphy shared her concerns about the condition of the retention pond at Paws Dog Park.  

She advised that the pond has been taken over by mosquitos and added that she is in favor of 

charging persons to use the Dog Park. 

 

 Ken Marsh, 2027 Gail Avenue, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Marsh addressed the Council concerning the oil stains on the pavers on North 1st Street and 

suggested that the City develop a plan to clean the pavers as needed.  (photos on file) 

 

 Jim Overby, 21 Burling Way, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Overby urged the Council to do everything they can to keep the Beaches Branch Library 

open. 

 

 Bob Welton, 1032 South 1st Street, #2, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Welton advised that the site line at 11th Street South and 2nd Street is blocked and requested 

that four way stop signs be installed. 

 

 Bruce Thomason, former Police Chief, Jacksonville Beach 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, June 17, 2013 

 
 

 

RC 130617min  Page 3 of 12 

Mr. Thomason commended the Mayor on the letter he wrote concerning the “Pub Crawl” on the 

4th of July.  He also encouraged the Council and Staff to review the Alcohol Ordinance in the 

Code of Ordinances to see if any of the provisions could help with the “Pub Crawl”. 

 Jon McGowan, 5 North 17th Avenue, #401, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. McGowan addressed the Council regarding the “Better Jacksonville Beach” organization 

being formed and explained that participants would be business owners in the Central Business 

District, Community Leaders, and Volunteers to help improve the image of Jacksonville Beach.  

Mr. McGowan added that a contest would be held to help find an appropriate name for the 

downtown business district.   

 

 Sam Veal, 502 3rd Avenue South, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Veal also addressed the stained pavers and advised that they would be cleaned later that 

evening, at no cost to the City. 

 

He provided a report on the Sea Walk Music Festival, which received extremely positive 

coverage by the press.  It was also well attended without any incidents.  He advised that the 

fireworks fund raising efforts are continuing.  Businesses are donating items to be raffled off to 

help fund the fireworks. 

 

Mr. Veal provided an update on the 4th of July Celebration and presented a check in the amount 

of $1,395.00.  He assured the Council that the celebration would be a family-oriented event with 

the Navy Band Southeast playing the 1812 Overture leading into the fireworks display.  Country 

music artist Craig Campbell and the Sassy Tappers will also be appearing. 

 

City Manager George Forbes advised that the following funds have been raised for the fireworks 

display: 

 

 City of Atlantic Beach - $5,000 

 City of Jacksonville - $5,000 

 Donations and the check presented by Mr. Veal - $4,300 

 

Mr. Forbes commented on the condition of the beach and festival area following the Sea Walk 

Music Festival.  He stated that the entire downtown area was completely clean and extended his 

appreciation to Mr. Veal and the City staff. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

 

(a) Mayor’s Letter Requesting Businesses Cancel the Pub Crawl on the 4th of July 

 

 The Mayor advised that the Council is pro-business and several meetings have been held with 

the business owners.  He stated that two years ago the fireworks celebration was cancelled due 

to the number of visitors and it reached a point where the police were having problems with 

visitors’ safety. 

 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, June 17, 2013 

 
 

 

RC 130617min  Page 4 of 12 

 He explained that the current 4th of July event will begin at 4:00 p.m. and will have music; it will 

honor our veterans, and create a family friendly atmosphere with hotdogs, hamburgers, and 

waving of American Flags. 

 

 Mayor Latham advised that approximately one week ago an independent promoter contacted 

area businesses for a “Pub Crawl” on the fourth.  It was discovered that four of the area 

restaurants with liquor licenses had elected to participate in the “Pub Crawl” and 200 tickets had 

been sold. 

 

 He added that Blue Water Grill had contacted him and decided not to participate in the “Pub 

Crawl” event.   

 

 Mayor Latham read the letter into the record (copy on file) and opened the floor for comments 

from the Council. 

 

 Council Comments 

 

 Mr. Doherty stated that he felt the letter was directed at bars and it indicated that they were not 

responsible business owners.  He advised that after the Mayor’s explanation he was comfortable 

with the letter. 

 

 Ms. Hoffman extended her appreciation for the explanation.  However, she is not in favor of 

targeting a certain type of business and asking them to turn away business.  Ms. Hoffman added 

that the letter was also in a threatening tone. 

 

 Mayor Latham responded to Ms. Hoffman’s comments and stated that he did not ask businesses 

to turn away customers.  He asked that the businesses not publish and celebrate the “Pub Crawl” 

event.  Mayor Latham added that the intent of the letter was not to be threatening, but to lay the 

facts out so everyone would understand that this year’s 4th of July is to be a safe, family friendly 

event. 

 

 Ms. Wilson stated that she was in favor of the letter; however, she understood Ms. Hoffman’s 

concern about discouraging business.  

 

 Mr. Vogelsang remarked instead of the letter, a representative should have contacted the 

businesses involved.  He concurred with Ms. Hoffman’s interpretation of the letter being 

threatening. 

 

 Mayor Latham advised that the letter was not meant to be threatening and when it was written, it 

was a blanket statement because none of the restaurants had signed up to be part of the “Pub 

Crawl”. 

 

 Mr. Hartkemeyer stated that he was totally in favor of the letter and the portion about not having 

a celebration next year if there are problems this year.  He commented that Council had 

discussed whether or not to have a celebration this year, as a result of previous problems. 

 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, June 17, 2013 

 
 

 

RC 130617min  Page 5 of 12 

CITY CLERK  
 

(a) Appointment of a Fifth Member to Serve on the General Employees’ Pension Board of Trustees. 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to reappoint Mr. Brandon 

Maresma, to serve as a trustee as the fifth member on the General Employees’ Pension 

Board, new term to expire February 12, 2015. 

 

Mr. Forbes explained that the fifth member of the pension boards are appointed by the other four 

members of the Board, and then the Council approves the appointment as a ministerial act. 

  

Roll call vote:  Ayes: Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

(b) Appointment of Two Members to the Community Redevelopment Agency. 

Motion #1: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, for the Council to 

consider reappointment of Mr. Fisher and Mr. Simmons to the Community 

Redevelopment Agency for a four-year term to expire on June 17, 2017.  Their 

expertise and knowledge with the redevelopment projects has proven invaluable to 

Jacksonville Beach. 

 

 Also for Council consideration, attached are the applications for Scott Cummings, 

Lloyd Hyatt, Cory Nichols, and Frances Povloski. 

 

Mr. Forbes explained that the Redevelopment Agency is a five-member board that oversees two 

redevelopment areas. 

 

Ms. Wilson initiated a discussion on the need for term limits on City Boards.  She stressed that 

she was not opposed to any of the persons up for reappointment, and added that their service is 

greatly appreciated.  Ms. Wilson suggested that Council hold a workshop on term limits on City 

Boards in the near future. 

 

Ms. Hoffman remarked that they have several new applicants with outstanding credentials and 

while she appreciates the current members’ service, the Council should consider the applicants. 

 

Mr. Doherty concurred with Ms. Wilson’s and Ms. Hoffman’s comments and stated that it is 

good to have new persons with new perspectives on the Boards. 

 

Mr. Vogelsang agreed with Ms. Wilson’s statements and stated that applicant Corey Nichols has 

an outstanding resume and he has tried to get on this Board for some time. 

 

Mr. Doherty asked why the Community Redevelopment Agency did not have alternates. 

 

Mr. Forbes explained that the Board is governed by state law, and the statute requires a five-

member board. 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, June 17, 2013 

 
 

 

RC 130617min  Page 6 of 12 

 

Mr. Taylor stated that serving on a City Board is a good stepping-stone to become involved in 

the City.  He added that he had served on the Codes Enforcement Board for eight years. 

 

Mayor Latham advised that the motion on the floor was to reappoint Mr. Fisher and Mr. 

Simmons. 

  

Roll call vote: Ayes: Hartkemeyer, Mayor Latham 

 Nays: Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty 

 Motion failed by a vote of 5-2. 

 

Motion #2: It was moved by Ms. Hoffman, seconded by Mr. Vogelsang, to appoint Mr. Cory 

Nichols and Ms. Frances Povloski to the Community Redevelopment Agency for 

four-year terms, to expire on June 17, 2017. 

 

Roll call vote:  Ayes: Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mr. Forbes advised that the Council appoints the Chairperson of the Redevelopment Agency and 

that the appointment will be on the next agenda for consideration. 

 

(c) Appointment of Two Members to the Planning Commission. 

 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, for the Council to appoint 

two members to the Planning Commission for a four term to expire on June 30, 2017. 

 

 Should the Council appoint the two alternates as the members, it is requested that the 

Council also appoint two new alternates to the Planning Commission to complete the 

unexpired terms, expiring on January 31, 2015. 

 

Mr. Vogelsang expressed his concern about appointing Mr. Hyatt since he has declared his 

intent to run for council again. 

 

Mr. Doherty advised that none of the remaining applicants chose the Planning Commission as 

their first choice. 

 

Ms. Wilson commented that the current members have not served in excess of twenty years on 

the Planning Commission. 

 

Motion #1: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Doherty, to reappoint Mr. Terry De 

Loach for a new four-year term to expire on June 30, 2017. 

 

Roll call vote: Ayes: Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, June 17, 2013 

 
 

 

RC 130617min  Page 7 of 12 

Motion #2: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to appoint Ms. 

Georgette Dumont as a regular member, term to expire June 30, 2017. 

 

Roll call vote: Ayes: Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

Motion #3: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to appoint Mr. Rick 

Knight as First Alternate to complete an unexpired term expiring January 31, 2015. 

 

Roll call vote: Ayes: Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

Motion #3: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to appoint Mr. Lee 

Dorson as Second Alternate to complete an unexpired term expiring January 31, 

2015. 

 

Roll call vote: Ayes: Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

CITY MANAGER 

 

(a) Monthly Financial Reports – Month of May 2013 

 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to approve the Monthly 

Financial Reports for the Month of May 2013. 

 

Roll call vote:  Ayes: Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, and Mayor 

  Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

 (b) Approve an Agreement to Lease Land in Jarboe Park, Owned by the City of Jacksonville Beach 

to Neptune Beach. 

 

 Mr. Forbes explained that Jacksonville Beach owns land at Jarboe Park, in Neptune Beach that 

was once used as an electric substation.  When the electric distribution system was rebuilt, this 

substation was no longer needed.  Since that time, the land has been used for storage of Beaches 

Energy equipment. 

 

 He added that Neptune Beach has requested to use this property to expand parking, which is 

greatly needed.  The request has been reviewed, and the City has no objections to leasing the 

land. 

 

 Mr. Forbes reviewed the lease.  It is for a period of 20 years; can only be used for public 

purposes related to Jarboe Park, such as parking.  No construction of buildings or structures are 

permitted; parking and landscaping is permissible and must be maintained in good condition 

during the term of the lease; the City of Neptune Beach must maintain liability insurance on the 

property and co-insure the City of Jacksonville Beach; and either party can cancel the lease with 

one year’s advance notice. 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, June 17, 2013 

 
 

 

RC 130617min  Page 8 of 12 

 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to authorize the Mayor 

and City Manager to execute an agreement between the City of Jacksonville Beach and 

Neptune Beach for land in Jarboe Park. 

 

Roll call vote:  Ayes: Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

(c) Approve a Contract Extension for the Golf Course Concessionaire for a Period of Three Years, 

Starting April 1, 2014 through March 31, 2017. 

Motion:  It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to approve the extension 

of the contract with Hero’s 19th Hole, Inc. to operate the golf course concessions for a 

period of three years, as described in a memo from the Recreation and Parks Director, 

Gary Meadors, dated June 7, 2013. 

 

Mr. Forbes explained that the Jacksonville Beach Golf Course has a contract with Hero’s 19th 

Hole, Inc. to operate the golf course snack bar and cart concessions.  Due to the reduction in 

play at the golf course in 2011, the City Council amended the contract to decrease the monthly 

payment from $4,400 to $3,608. 

 

Since that time, golf course construction was completed and play has stabilized.  Hero’s 19th 

Hole is asking the City to consider reinstating the option to renew the contract for three 

additional years and that the monthly rental remains at $3,608.  In addition to the monthly rental, 

the concessionaire will continue to pay property taxes for the snack bar space, utilities for the 

snack bar and rental costs for the beverage carts, which totals approximately $18,000 per year. 

 

Roll call vote:  Ayes:  Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

(d) Approve the Installation of Tennis Court Lights at Huguenot Tennis Center 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to approve the installation 

of tennis court lights at Huguenot Tennis Center, as described in the memorandum 

from the Recreation & Parks Director, dated June 7, 2013. 

Mr. Forbes explained that Huguenot Tennis Center has seven courts and only one does not have 

lighting for nighttime play.  He added that the cost to purchase lights will be $39,250 and 

installation will be performed by Beaches Energy Services.  Funding for the project is available 

from the Sports Field Lights Project, supplemented by the Tennis Capital Improvement Fees 

Reserve. 

 

 Roll call vote:  Ayes: Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

(e) Approve the Construction of One Replacement Plexi-cushion Tennis Court at South Beach Park. 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, June 17, 2013 

 
 

 

RC 130617min  Page 9 of 12 

 Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to approve the 

construction of a new Plexi-cushion tennis court at South Beach Park, as described in a 

memo from the Recreation and Parks Director, Gary Meadors, dated June 7, 2013. 

Mr. Forbes advised that the City has one tennis court at South Beach Park that is open for public 

play.  The original court was constructed ten years ago, using concrete as the base surface.  Over 

time, the concrete surface has developed cracks that are affecting play on the court.  Since the 

court has to be rebuilt, staff is recommending installation of the Plexi-cushion surface currently 

in use at Huguenot Tennis Center.  Mr. Forbes added that funding for the project was approved 

by the Community Redevelopment Agency at their May meeting; and will not be taken from the 

general fund. 

 

Roll call vote:  Ayes:  Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

(f) Approve the Installation of Magnetic Gate Locks and Entry System at Both the Small and Large 

Dog Parks. 

 Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to approve the installation 

of magnetic gate locks and entry system at the Paws Park, Dog Park, as described in a 

memo from the Recreation and Parks Director, Gary Meadors, dated June 8, 2013. 

 

Speakers: 

 

 Sandy Golding, 1203 North 18th Avenue, Jacksonville Beach 

Ms. Golding explained that the Paws Dog Parks are very popular and they are now suffering 

from overuse.  There is a dedicated volunteer group “Friends of Paws Parks” that oversees the 

parks.  Fundraisers are being held to assist with restoration of the park and are seeking funding 

from the City of Jacksonville.  Ms. Golding advised that she is in favor of the controlled access 

and the proposed membership fees ($50 for first dog, $25 for each dog thereafter).  She asked 

that the Council support the gate locks and maintenance of the parks. 

 

 Lance Folsom, 1022 North 23rd Street, Jacksonville Beach 

Mr. Folsom spoke in favor of the improvements to the Paws Dog Parks and the fees to use the 

parks.  He also expressed his appreciation for the City’s assistance and added that the dogs really 

love the park. 

 

 Pat Villa, 14365 Cedar Island Road, Jacksonville 

Ms. Villa expressed her support of Paws Dog Park and said that the volunteers work to fund the 

park, but they need the City’s assistance at this point. 

 

Mr. Forbes stated that the dog park does not meet the City’s standards and he is asking the 

Council to set-up a maintenance account to help with the improvements to the park.  He also 

reviewed the proposed magnetic gate locks and entry system at the park. 

 



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, June 17, 2013 

 
 

 

RC 130617min  Page 10 of 12 

Mr. Meadors responded to Councilmembers’ questions regarding the locking system and 

maintenance of the parks.   

 

Mr. Vogelsang voiced his support of the proposed fees for users of the park.  He stated the fee is 

more than reasonable and that there needs to be a plan for upkeep and to enable upgrades to the 

park. 

 

Mr. Doherty stated that it is a small amount of money and the gate access system will pay for its 

self in a short amount of time.  He suggested that the parks should have concrete walkways.  Mr. 

Doherty added that the retention pond fencing is in need of repair/cleaning. 

 

Ms. Hoffman remarked that she is in favor of the project and added that she would love to be a 

judge for the Halloween costume contest. 

 

Roll call vote:  Ayes:  Doherty Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

(g) Authorize the City’s 2013 Asphalt Rejuvenation Pavement Maintenance Program 

 

 Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to authorize the City’s 

2013 Asphalt Rejuvenation Pavement Maintenance Program at an estimated cost not 

to exceed $275,980, as explained in the memorandum from the Public Works Director 

dated, May 31, 2013. 

Mr. Forbes reviewed the City’s pavement maintenance program and added this year includes 

asphalt rejuvenation.  He explained that the process is a cost-effective maintenance procedure 

for roads with good condition pavement.  The goal of the rejuvenation is to keep good pavement 

in good condition for a longer period of time.  This year the City has approximately seventeen 

miles of roadway, and several public parking lots scheduled for maintenance.  Mr. Forbes 

reviewed the list and map of proposed streets and parking lots to be treated. 

 

Roll call vote:  Ayes: Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

 

(a) RESOLUTION NO.  1916-2013 

 

Mayor Latham requested that Resolution No. 1916-2016, be read by title; whereupon Ms. 

Bullock read the following: 

  

“A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

JACKSONVILLE BEACH REQUESTING THAT THE FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION DESIGNATE STATE ROAD A1A 

IN JACKSONVILLE BEACH, DUVAL AND NASSAU COUNTIES AS A 

FLORIDA SCENIC HIGHWAY.”  



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, June 17, 2013 

 
 

 

RC 130617min  Page 11 of 12 

 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to adopt Resolution No. 

1916-2013, requesting the Florida Department of Transportation designate SR A1A, 

as a Florida Scenic Highway. 

 

Speaker: 

 

 Elaine Brown, 1302 Neptune Grove East, Neptune Beach 

Ms. Brown thanked the Council for their support in having the FDOT designate State Road A1A 

as a Florida Scenic Highway and provided Councilmembers with handouts (copy on file).  Ms. 

Brown added that the City of Jacksonville and Fernandina Beach have also passed Resolutions. 

 

Councilmembers extended their appreciation for Ms. Brown’s support of the Ferry and for her 

current endeavor to have A1A declared as a scenic highway. 

 

Roll call vote:  Ayes:  Hoffman, Hartkemeyer, Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

(b) RESOLUTION NO.  1915-2013 

 

Mayor Latham requested that Resolution No. 1915-2013, be read by title; whereupon Ms. 

Bullock read the following: 

 

  “A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 

POSITION CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN FOR DEPARTMENT 

DIRECTORS AND MANAGERIAL, PROFESSIONAL, ADMINISTRATIVE, 

AND UNCLASSIFIED (NON-UNION) CITY POSITIONS, EFFECTIVE JUNE 

17, 2013.” 

 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to adopt Resolution No. 

1915-2013, amending the Position Classification and Pay Plan for Department 

Directors and Managerial, Administrative and Unclassified (Non-Union) Positions. 

 

Mr. Forbes advised that the resolution is in conjunction with Ordinance No. 2013-8029.  He 

explained that administration of the pension plan is to be transferred to Human Resources later 

this year.  However, the City Clerk will remain the Secretary to the Pension Boards.  Mr. Forbes 

told the Council that Human Resources would be reorganized, with no change to the number of 

employees. 

 

Roll call vote:  Ayes:  Taylor, Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

  



Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting   

held Monday, June 17, 2013 

 
 

 

RC 130617min  Page 12 of 12 

ORDINANCES 

 

(a) ORDINANCE NO.  2013-8029 – SECOND READING 

 

Mayor Latham requested that Ordinance No. 2013-8029, be read by title; whereupon Ms. 

Bullock read the following: 

 

“AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE V, DIVISION 5, 

‘GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM’ OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH; TO PROVIDE 

FOR A CHANGE IN THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE RETIREMENT 

SYSTEM; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR THE 

REPEAL OF ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING 

FOR CODIFICATION AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.”  

 

Motion: It was moved by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Hartkemeyer, to adopt Ordinance 

Number 2013-8029, to change the pension administration services from the City 

Clerk’s Office to the Human Resources Department. 

 

Roll call vote:  Ayes: Vogelsang, Wilson, Doherty, Hartkemeyer, Hoffman, Taylor and Mayor 

Latham; motion carried unanimously. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business coming before the Council, Mayor Latham adjourned the meeting at 

9:04 p.m. 

 

Submitted by: Judy L. Bullock  

 City Clerk 

 

 

   Approval: 

  

 

 

        

     William C. Latham, Mayor 

     

       

      Date:  July 15, 2013  






























































	RC 130715 agenda cmm
	130611 CC Wksp min DRAFT Wtrmk
	RC 130617min jlb with watermark
	Mayor (a)
	Clerk (a)
	Clerk (b)
	City Mgr (b)
	City Mgr (c)
	City Mgr (d)
	Resolution 1917-2013

